MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OADBY RESIDENTS' FORUM HELD AT CIVIC SUITE, BROCKS HILL COUNCIL OFFICES, WASHBROOK LANE, OADBY, LEICESTER, LE2 5JJ ON WEDNESDAY, 16 OCTOBER 2024 COMMENCING AT 6.30 PM

PRESENT

D A Gamble Chair

COUNCILLORS

N Alam M L Darr F S Ghattoraya S Z Haq J Kaufman I K Ridley

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

M Smith Community Safety & Youth Officer

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Sgt. M BodyLeicestershire PoliceL MonkLeicestershire County Council

32. POLICE UPDATE

Sgt. M Body introduced himself to residents as the new Sgt for the Oadby & Wigston Beat Teams.

Residential burglaries remains a priority in Oadby based on resident feedback and crime trends, specifically in relation to last year. In the last 3 month period there have been 9 burglaries, down from 19 in the same period last year. This is likely down to a new priority team working out of Wigston focusing on burglaries.

The funding provided via the PCC's Office utilised to purchased cocooning packs was mentioned.

Vehicle crime -15 in the same 3 month period last year, this year has unfortunately increased following a spree in one night around the Rosemead Drive area bringing it up to 25 incidents. Op Pioneer is focusing on this type of crime for the Police.

Coming up the Police will be running a burglary operation in relation to the darker nights campaign which runs annually.

There have been several incidents of shop breaks along Oadby Parade which an operation is being planned to address. There is no pattern to when the shop breaks are occurring.

A resident noted on one night, around 3am, when travelling home 14 people walking around with hoods over their heads which raised his suspicions. Sgt. Body noted that where the Police have reasonable suspicion they will stop people under Stop and Search

Oadby Residents' Forum Wednesday, 16 October 2024, 6.30 pm

Printed and published by Community & Wellbeing, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ



Meeting ID: 2719

powers but the circumstances for this to happen are strict.

A resident raised a large number of vehicles travelling around the Oadby area with loud exhausts. Sgt. Body noted that the Police are aware of these vehicles having been reported in the Rosemead area and around the Oadby industrial area. The Police regularly run Fatal 4 operations in the Borough to address road safety, and officers have received additional speed gun training in the Borough.

One resident noted a car with a private number plate that speeds through Oadby most mornings around 7:30am. The plate was provided to Sgt. Body.

An empty building on the Parade, over Specsavers, was raised as a concern which was noted the Police are already aware of. Young people are entering the building by climbing over rooftops and there is a suspicion of drug use. Cllr. Ridley noted that this should be brought to the attention of the Planning Team to see if there are any powers that can be applied to enact repairs; permitted development was given for the building to be converted into flats which hasn't occurred as yet. Residents suggested that this building could be compulsory purchased and developed into flats to address housing needs in the area. Queens Road, Leicester was noted as an example of a thriving high street which should be emulated in other areas, especially Oadby, by residents.

Cllr. Alam questioned discretionary funding that County Councillors may have; it was confirmed that this funding stopped 2 years ago and is no longer available.

33. FIRE SERVICE UPDATE

No attendance likely due to operational need. LFRS will be invited to the next Forum.

Residents raised a potential question for LFRS around properties building extensions that remove all rear access to the property, and how this will affect the ability of LFRS to firefight. Previously there have been planning restrictions around maintaining access to the rear of properties but this has likely been revoked.

34. CHAIR'S UPDATES

35. PARKING PROBLEMS AROUND THE YEWS / HARVARD CLOSE

County Council do not employ any Parking Wardens after 6pm which creates a 'free for all' in the area when it comes to vehicles parking inconsiderately. A recent accident in this area was caused by obstructed views due to vehicles parked on pavements; Sgt. Body notes that if the crash was reported correctly it will have been fed back to the Police through established routes.

Cllr. Gamble noted a meeting that took place last Monday on this matter which Cllr. Boulter attended alongside the Police and local residents. Proposals have been put forward through this meeting to the County Council around the enforcement of the zig-zag markings and 'pencil bollards' for outside of the school. The eroded single yellow lines have also been reported. Additionally a residents parking scheme for the area has also been suggested. Cllr. Gamble will look to have an on-site meeting with Ozzy O'Shae at the County Council to discuss the problem. Should bollards not be affordable then trees may be considered as an alternative.

Printed and published by Community & Wellbeing, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ Residents noted that a residents parking scheme was suggested several meetings ago for Primrose Hill and were told that the scheme would need to be considered by LCC. There has been no feedback to date on this. Residents parking schemes require 100% agreement from residents that would be affected by the scheme. Cllr. Ridley followed up on this on behalf of residents on Primrose Hill and in the neighbouring streets; LCC stated that, in addition to 100% agreement, any parking scheme would require £10,000 third-party funding due to restrictive local authority funding. Cllr. Ridley will re-enquire about this with LCC.

36. ITEMS RAISED BY RESIDENTS

Car Park Potholes

As of today's date (16 October) the Council has gone out to tender for car park repairs covering all car parks in the Borough. East Street car park was noted as having some significant pot holes. Queries were raised about pot holes in the privately owned sections of East Street car park; M Smith will speak with Corporate Assets as to whether the owners will be involved in the tender to see the surfaces repaired. Cllr. Haq noted, in response to a questions about car park lighting, that the Estates Management Team have been requested to look into this.

Land Auctions

A resident queried if we know how bought the parcels of land that were recently auctioned off. Buyers aren't known but all seven parcels have planning conditions attached to them that require them to be maintained as publicly accessible land for the public benefit; no development will be able to take place on these parcels of land. Residents questioned regarding flooding on these lands which would be the responsibility of the land owners. Any work the Council is forced to do to maintain the land will be recharged to the owners where required. A map of the parcels of land which have been auctioned off was requested to be distributed with the Minutes of this meeting.

Idling Vehicles

A resident raised concerns around idling vehicles near schools. M Smith noted an upcoming clean air policy / project that the Council is in the early stages of development. This is likely to include the Schools across the Borough based on work which took place along Blaby Road in South Wigston.

Former Oadby Swimming Pool Site

An update was requested on this. It was noted that there is currently a badger's set on the site which is preventing any work commencing on the site at present. An ecological report and process must now be followed although the land is believed to be under offer, sold subject to planning. As the Council is the planning authority and the landowner there are additional steps that need to be taken around the sale of the land, development of the site, and the badger's set.

Planning Application near Windrush Drive

Cllr. Haq noted a planning application was made for development of land near Windrush over a year ago which, at the time, the Council did not support. Under the new Labour government there are new housing development targets, raising the building of 249 houses per year for the Borough to over 300, which has resulted in the planning application being resubmitted for 149 houses, parks, a medical centre, community centre, and other public facilities. Due to the government changes the Council has to consider this application. As the Council is currently able to negotiate with the developer it can pursue significant public infrastructure; if the planning is refused the developer could appeal to

Oadby Residents' Forum Wednesday, 16 October 2024, 6.30 pm Printed and published by Community & Wellbeing, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ the government and see a revised application granted which features more houses, up to 500, and less public infrastructure. Cllr. Haq noted that previously housing developers would do 'piecemeal applications' where a small number of houses were built each time meaning no infrastructure was required; this is no longer the case and the Council is pushing for infrastructure to be included in developments moving forward – Grange Farm estate was noted by Cllr. Gamble as being an example of a piecemeal development that lacks infrastructure.

Residents raised concerns over footpaths that run over the proposed site and have been in use for over 30 years. The bridleway will be maintained, and designated footpaths are protected but can be moved as part of the development. The woodland in the same area was queried in terms of being retained; it is the Councils understanding that the woodlands are not included as an area for development within the outline planning application.

Residents asked if the pond at Bluebell Lane would be restored to its true use as a flood protection pond if the development went ahead. This would be the decision of Severn Trent.

Any conditions attached to the planning permission, if granted, are completely enforceable by the Council meaning that any required infrastructure would be developed as proposed.

Residents queried if the Council, as part of considering this application, will be looking at flooding potential and additional traffic through the area. It was confirmed that this is absolutely a part of the planning process. The government's proposed climate change policies were also raised by residents as something that the Council will need to consider. Applicants will also need to consider biodiversity as part of their applications; this process will change slightly where developers who cannot confirm there would not be a net loss in biodiversity would be required to purchase 'credits' which must be used to fund biodiversity works in other local areas.

Walter Charles Centre Site

Residents queried the status of the sale of this building – It was confirmed that the site has been sold but no planning applications have been received.

Public Footpaths on Beach Road

The condition of these footpaths is terrible and causing concerns for older residents. Cllr. Gamble will make sure this is reported to LCC Highways as soon as possible.

Street Cleaning

Residents note that the street cleaner who the residents commended previously has not been seen for some time. An enquiry will be raised about this for the next Forum.

37. <u>PAVEMENT PARKING - THE PARADE, OADBY</u>

Sgt. Body noted that the Police devolved their powers regarding pavement parking etc. to the County Council some years ago. Officers that witness this will often approach drivers but this isn't always possible. A resident noted that taxi drivers are now parking outside of Bru to collect orders etc. Some of these vehicles are parking within the scope of the zig-zag markings which the Police are able to enforce. Bollards were suggested by residents as a solution but this is likely to be in the longer term.

Residents raised concerns of vehicles parking inconsiderately in the Uplands Road (Fairfield

Oadby Residents' Forum

Wednesday, 16 October 2024, 6.30 pm

Printed and published by Community & Wellbeing, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ Road) area that may be linked to a business operating out of residential property. Details will be provided to Councillors to be passed back to Council Officers for investigation.

Parking on the corner of Chestnut Avenue was also raised by a resident as likely to cause an accident.

Residents requested a point of contact for an officer within the Council to liaise with over the parking concerns in the Borough. Cllr. Gamble noted that he would be the best point of contact for this, as a County Councillor, as this matter is for Leicestershire County Council.

Cllr. Kaufman noted that the parking issues around Beauchamp College and Gartree High School are increasing. Cllr. Kaufman noted an ongoing campaign for an additional entrance to the schools to be built as part of the development of the new estate to the rear of the schools on Cottage Farm.

Residents queried if the new access through Cottage Farm would provide a through route from the A6 right through to Newton Lane; this would be a concern for speeding vehicles if it were to occur but this currently does not form part of any planning application the Council has seen. Speeding vehicles around Briar Meads are already a concern for residents.

Residents queried whether the Council has any powers under licensing laws that could be utilised to address premises where parking is a regular problem. This has been looked at previously in relation to the Sports Bar and remains under investigation. Cllr. Ridley will follow up on this for an update.

38. SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None suggested.

39. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 13 February 2025 – 18:30 – Brocks Hill Council Offices

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 7.44 pm